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Message

From: Andrew Parsons E GRO

Sent: 21/10/2019 09:12:41 ' .

To: Emanuel, Catherine | GRO i Ben Foat { GRO i; Rodric Williams
i 8RO ] . '

cc: Watts, Alan [ GRO ; Lerner, Alexi GRO , Deas, Emmal GRO

Sushma MacGeoché GRO i; Belinda Fox GRO ], Rachel Lawrie

GRO i Rosie Gaisford | GRO

Subject: RE: Scope of FIT - harassment and costs [WBDUKZAC’.'FFDZGS'%QZIB'J """"""""""

| agres with Kate ~ in crude terms, | would equate this (o at least a 80% chance of success {i could be persuaded to go
higher}. But we would need o re-assess this once the Cs have properly set oul their position.

A

Andrew Parsons
Partner
Womble Bond Dickinson (UK) LLP

~ GRO

o andrew. parsonst GRO i

Sign up for legal updates, e-newsletters and event invitations

womblebonddickinson.com

+: Rodric Williams

beas, Emma <

GRO

GRO

:; Rachel Lawrie

WOMBLE
BOND
DICKINSON
From: Emanuel, Catherine | GRO
Sent: 21 October 2019 09:31
To: Ben Foat 4 GRO . i; Andrew Parsons ! GRO
| GRO —
Cc: Watts, Alan! GRO Lerner, Alex < GRO
Sushma MacGeoch < GRO i; Belinda Foxg
i GRO >; Rosie Gaisford { 6RO

Subject: RE: Scope of FIT - harassment and costs [WBDUK-AC.FID26896945]

This is not a claim that has to our knowledge ever been raised before in a Htigation context and our preliminary view, per

our earlier advice, is that the Claimants will face an uphill battle,

Given the Fraser | factor, we are looking at it more closely {both from a merits and strategic perspective} with a view to
sharing more concluded views and will Haise with Helen Davies {while Tony Robinson is working on other aspects).

GRO i

From: Ben Foat-; GRO

Sent: 21 October 2019 09:23

To: andrew.parsons < GRO iRodric Williams < GRO

Cc: Watts, Alan ! GRO iEmanuel, Catherine < GRO i Lerner, Alex
GRO >, Deas, Emma GRO ; Sushma MacGeoch <

Belinda Fox GRO ;RacheILawne < GRO »; Rosie Gaisford
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GRO i
Subject: Re: Scope of FIT - harassment and costs [WBDUK-AC.FID26896945]

Thanks Andy - what’s the level of risk that the claimants could succeed in recovering their funding costs { I've
never seen it done and thought it was against public policy but would be helpful in having a broad
understanding on the likelihood 1e 20%, 40%, 50%, 60%, 80% etc. )

Kind regards

Ben

Ben Foat

General Counsel

Post Office Limited

Ben.foati GRO

From: Andrew Parsong GRO >

Sent: Monday, October 21, 2019 8:41:12 AM

To: Ben Foat 5 GRO » Rodric Williams GRO

Cc: Watts, Alan i GRO Emanuel, Catherine < GRO 5 Lerner, Alex
! GRO », Deas, Emma SR »; Sushma MacGeoch < GRO :
“Belinda Fox < GRO ‘ iRachel Lawrie < . GRO ' i, Rosie Gaisford ‘
' GRO | '

I Subject: Scope of FIT - harassrﬁent and costs [WBDUK-AC.FID26896945]

Ben, Rodric

Last week we received letters from the Cs about the scope of the Further Issues trial in relation to two points: harassment
and litigation funding costs. The legal team met on Friday and below is the combined view of Counsel (HDQC and
TRQC), WBD and HSF. We should be grateful for instructions to respond to these matters as proposed below. We
should respond to the Cs by close of business tomorrow and so could discuss this on our call at 4pm today.

Harassment

The Cs wish to extend the scope of the FIT to include a limited question around liability for harassment (as distinct from
questions around the measure of loss that might arise from a harassment claim, which already properly form part of the
trial). They are seeking for the Court to confirm that Post Office sending debt letters to SPMs can, in theory, amount to
harassment. This would require an extension to the scope of the FIT as it would not fall within the Court's current Order.

The legal team's view is that this should be opposed.

e First, harassment is a highly factually sensitive topic and the Court needs to understand the full circumstances of
a case to form a view on whether conduct can amount to harassment. At present, the FIT should be proceeding
on assumed (uncontested) facts, with no witness evidence.

e Second, the formulation of this question by the Cs sets the bar very low. Post Office would have difficult task in
disproving this "in theory" case as nearly any conduct can amount to harassment if taken to an extreme, and
indeed there are precedents where debt recovery processes have been found to amount to harassment. This
could lead to a decision that is of little legal utility (as the question of harassment would still turn on its own facts in
each case) but a judgment against Post Office on this theoretical point could be misunderstood by the public as a
finding that Post Office has harassed SPMs.

e Third, the Judge has already expressed dim views about Post Office's debt recovery procedures in the CIT
judgment and so this is an unsafe area for us.

Recommendation - that Post Office should oppose the inclusion of this liability question in the FIT. That may then
provoke Cs to apply for it to be added and that point may be heard by the Judge at the CMC on 7 November. If the Cs
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make a formal application on this topic that would the expose Post Office to a costs risk (c.£50k based on previcus
figures) should the Judge agree with the Cs.

Litigation funding costs

The Cs have asked whether Post Office agrees that it can recover its litigation funding costs as a head of costs in the

litigation. If Post Office does not agree this point, the Cs may then try to recover their litigation funding costs as damages
and put that as a point to be decided in the FIT. We do not know what their litigation funding costs are but they are
estimated in the tens of millions of pounds.

The legal team's view is that Post Office should, at this early stage, contest the recoverability of litigation funding costs:

e There is no precedent for litigation funding costs to be recovered as costs in litigation. Indeed, as a matter of
public policy changes were made to the CPR to exclude their recoverability. This would be a novel point for the
Cs to run. It would also be outside the scope of the FIT as currently defined.

e We have not yet found any precedent for being able to recover litigation funding costs as damages. We cannot
however stop the Cs pleading out this head of damage in their claims due at the end of week. Therefore, if the Cs
wish to include this point in the FIT, Post Office cannot stop that.

o \We are also concerned that the Cs are using this a vehicle to highlight to the Judge that the funder may be taking
a large share of the Cs damages. This may make the Judge more sympathetic to agreeing in principle to higher
damages on more orthodox heads of loss so to ensure that the Cs get to walk away with some compensation.

Recommendation - that Post Office denies that litigation funding costs can be recovered as a head of cost in the litigation
but stays silent on the recoverability of litigation funding costs as damages until the Cs plead out that claim. If they do
plead out a damages claim, further advice can be provided at that point.

Kind regards
Andy

Andrew Parsons
Pariner
Wombie Bond Dickinson (UK) LLP

' GRO

andrew parsons! GRO

Sign up for legal updates, e-newsletiers and eveni invitations

womblebonddickinson.com
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This email and any attachments are confidential and intended for the addressee only. If you are not the named
recipient, you must not use, disclose, reproduce, copy or distribute the contents of this communication. If you
have received this in error, please contact the sender by reply email and then delete this email from your system.
Any views or opinions expressed within this email are solely those of the sender, unless otherwise specifically
stated.

POST OFFICE LIMITED is registered in England and Wales no 2154540. Registered Office: Finsbury Dials,
20 Finsbury Street, London EC2Y 9AQ.
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“Post Office Limited is committed to protecting your privacy. Information about how we do this can be found
on our website at www.postoffice coub/privacy”

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP and its subsidiaries and Herbert Smith Freehills, an Australian Partnership, are
separate member firms of the international legal practice known as Herbert Smith Freehills.

This message is confidential and may be covered by legal professional privilege. If you are not the intended
recipient you must not disclose or use the information contained in it. If you have received this email in error
please notify us immediately by return email or by calling our main switchboard on! GRO tand
delete the email. ' '

Further information is available from www herbertsmithfrechills com, including our Privacy Policy which
describes how we handle personal information.

Herbert Smith Freehills LLP is a Limited Liability Partnership registered in England and Wales with registered
number OC310989. 1t is authorised and regulated by the Solicitors' Regulation Authority of England and Wales
whose rules can be accessed via www sra org uk/code-of-conduct page. A list of the members and their
professional qualifications is open to inspection at the registered office, Exchange House, Primrose Street,
London EC2A 2EG. We use the word partner of Herbert Smith Freehills LLP to refer to a member of Herbert
Smith Freehills LLP, or an employee or consultant with equivalent standing and qualifications. Herbert Smith
Freehills LLP's registration number for Value Added Tax in the United Kingdom is GB 927 1996 83.
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